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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of NEW SPICE SALES AND SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone IND AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEW SPICE SALES AND
SOLUTIONS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
and its profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.




Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® ]dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

d)

)

g

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations impact on its financial
position in its financial statements.- Refer Note 7 B of the standalone financial statements.

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium

or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether

I




recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries) by or on behalf
of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on the audits procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material mis-statement.

5. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

h) The Company has not paid/ provided any managerial remuneration during the year ended
March 31, 2023 and thus no comment has been offered under Section 197 (16) read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

Place: New Delhi For S.D. Chopra & Associates
Date: 12.05.2023 Chartered Accountants

S.D. Chopra
Partner
Membership No. 082537
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our report of even date
Re: New Spice Sales And Solutions Limited (‘The Company’)

The comments are in seriatim of the order

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any
Property, Plant and Equipment. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) (a), (b), (¢) and (d) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company as at 31.03.2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaction
(Prohibition) Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under.

ii. In respect of its Inventories:-

a.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year The Company has not made any investments in
Companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
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Vi,

the records of the Company, In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as per information and explanations given to us by the
management, the central government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.




vii. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ states insurance, income tax, sales-tax, services tax, customs
duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it though there
has been slight delay in few cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ states insurance, income tax, sales-tax, services tax,
customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding at the period end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income- tax, sales-tax,

GST, service tax,

dispute, are as follows:

customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess on account of any
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of




xi.

xii.

loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender, and has not been
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
as defined in the Act.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

(a) As per the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and
term loans hence Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
theyear. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) No report Under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rule-2014 and as such the clause is

not applicable.

(¢) During the year under consideration, no whistle-blower complaint has been received and as
such the question of its consideration by the auditors does not arises

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, The company is not a Nidhi Company and as such clause (xii) is
not applicable.




xiii.
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XV.

XVI.

XVil.

XViil.

XiX,

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to information and explanations given by the
management, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards (Ind AS).

The company is not required to have internal auditors under section 138 of the companies Act
2013 and therefore, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable
to the Company.

As per the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have more than one CIC. Accordingly the requirements of clause 3(xvi) (d) are
not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due; and




xX.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Place: New Delhi For S.D. Chopra & Associates
Date: 12.05.2023 Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003789N

S.D. Chopra
Partner
Membership No. 082537
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

NEW SPICE SALES AND SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEW SPICE SALES
AND SOLUTIONS LIMITED(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

CITor.




We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , we
report that the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: New Delhi For S.D. Chopra & Associates
Date: 12.05.2023 Chartered Accountants
Iirm Registration No. 003789N

S.D. Chopra
Partner
Membership No. 082537
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New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited

CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032

Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Notes 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Rs.(000's) Rs.(000's)
Assets
Assets directly associated with discontinued business 1 36,319 38,719
TOTAL ASSETS 36,319 38,719
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 4 9,97,174 9,97,174
Qther Equity (23,20,588) (22,69,561)
{13,23,414) (12,72,387)
Liabilities
Liabilities directly related to discontinued business i 13,59,733 13,11,106
13,59,733 13,11,106
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36,319 38,719
{0.00) 0

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S D CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003789N

8. D. Chopra /“
Proprietor (“(.1
Membershipfig."d

Place: Noida
Date: 12th May 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions

guc% GLL{DJC&

Limited

=
(C__"q an{@-—-—-—.«
Sanjeev Kumar

Director
DIN: 08982253

c all/éhlntan Desal

Company Secretary

Shilpy Gupta
Director
DIN: 07234866

}

Surengra Kumar V&rma
Chief Financial Officer



. New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032

Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092.

Statement of Profit & Loss for Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Notes For the Year ended March 31,  For the Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
—{B5,000) (Rs, 000} _

Continuing operations = 3
(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (a) " E
Discontinued operations
({Loss) before tax for the year fram discontinued operations (51,027) 33,043
Tax adiustment related to earlier years . i
(Loss) for the year from discontinued operations (b) (51,027) 33,043
(Loss) for the year (a+b) (51,027) 33,043
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss - continuing operations - -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - discontinuing operations - -
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset - 3
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising (Loss) and Other 2 (51,027) 33,043
Comprehensive Income for the vear)
Earnings per equity share from continuing business
(1) Basic ‘ 5 E -
(2) Diluted ” 2
Earnings per equity share from discontinuned business
(1) Basic (0.51) 0.33
(2) Diluted (0.51) 0.33
Earnings per equity share from continuing/discontinued business
(1) Basic (0.51) 033
(2) Diluted (0.51) 033
Summary of significant accounting policles 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S D CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES
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S. D. Chopra L
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited

9%%__
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Director
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Company Secretary
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Diractor
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New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032
Regd. Address: B-6/101, ist. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,

Statement of cash flows for year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Forthe Year ended March,  For the Year ended March,
31, 2023 31, 2022
{Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profitf{loss) before taxation
i naR (51,027) 33,043
- Depreciation / amortisation 5

- Loss on disposal of fied assets (net) - i

= Diminution in the value of current investments = .
- Provisions and unclaimed balances written back 2 i
- Excentional em = N
- Diminutian In the valus of non-current investments - g
- Unrealised exchanae loss/(qain) (net)

- Interest expense 50 498- )
- Interest income NG {29<??4:t
- Dividend Income = =
-Unspent Habllioy written back [2in 4.337)

-Previsions and unclaimed balances written back (net)

= Income from Investment in foced maturity olan Investments

- Profit on sale of investments In a subsidiary company . 3
- Loss on sale of curent Investments . =
- Provision for doubtful debts and advances {net) . :
- Bad debts and advances written off = =
Operating (loss) / profit before waorking capital changes (802) W

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) ! Decrease in inventories . - Z
(Increase) / Decrease In trade recelvables I .
Decrease f{Increase) i non-current loans and advances i
(Increase) in current loans and advances 301y 2,700
(Increase) in current assets t 2,704 805
fincrease) In other non-current assets ¥ 2
Increase in cther non -current liabilties - -
Increase/ {Decrease) in other current liabilities - : a

(Decrease) in trade pavables -1,596.44 (1,481}
Incease/ (Decrease} in non-current m:mslons Z =
Tnerease/ (Decrease) (n current provisions . . (178)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations 4 779
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) . 22 732
Net cash frem f{used In) operating activities (A) 27 1,511
‘CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN} INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed deposits made wilh banks Qg} -
Net cash {used In)/from Investing activities (B) (20) -

CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loans taken from body corporate 5

Loans repaid back to body corporate . (L.579)
Net cash (used in) financing activities {C) - (1,579
Met Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) . 7 (68)
Cash and cash equivalents at the bealnning of the vear kL) 407
Cash and cash equivalents of the [ pany as at the . -
beainning of the period

Cash and cash eq of business during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 345 339

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand

Cheques/ drafts oa hand

With banks

- o0 current account — EL]
Tota| cash and cash equivalents {note 16) 345

mmary of significant accounting pol 3 ==
: L

1%

w
w
]

Notes ¢

1. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standasd 7 on Cash Flow natified by Comp
Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended). |

2. Negative figures have been shown in brackets,

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions
Limited

o Slidpy (upta

5 D CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES Sanjeev Kumar Shilpy Gupta
Chartered Accountants Director 3 Director
Firm Registration No. 003789N DIN: 08982253 DIN: 07234866

5. D. Chopra
5 ///' i —_ 1}

Proprietor

Membership No. k A y o8 .
1 i / , @Mﬂ
UDIN: 23082537BGZJEM’ tall Chintan Desal Suréndra Klmar

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Noida
Date: 12th May 2023
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New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092.

Statement of changes in Equity (SOCE)

CIN: U32201DL1988BPLC399032
Notes to financials statements as at Mar 31,2023

Figures as at

Figures as at

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Rs,(000's) R5.{000's)

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of INR Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number of shares 9,97,17,400 9,97,17,400

Equity Share Capital 9,97,174 9,97,174

Total 9,97,174 9,97,174

B.Other Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2023

Amount in Rs.(000's)

Reserves and Surplus 4|>
Equity portion of
: & 4 compulsoril
LERIge ::é::::::as Prentiim Amalgamation Reserve|Capital Reserve nonvllrtlhle Y ';::'iil:ed Total
debentures 9
As at 1st April, 2022 3,99,503 12,92,347 8,44,347 3,15,481 (51,21,240) (22,69,562)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - (51,027) (51,027)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
As at 31st March, 2023 3,99,503 12,92,347 8,44,347 3,15,481 (51,72,268) {23,20,589)
For the year ended 31st March 2022
Reserves and Surplus
Retained Earnings Equity portion of
Particulars i compulsorily Retained
Amalgamation Reserve|Capital Reserve convertible Earning Total
debentures
As at 1st April, 2021 3,909,503 12,92,347 8,44,347 3,15,481 (51,54,284) (23,02,605)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - @ = 33,042 33,043
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) =
As at 31st March, 2022 3,99,503 12,92,347 8,44,347 3,15,481 (51,21,240) (22,69,562)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S D CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration no 003783
S.D. Chopra (G f
Proprietor &Oﬂ
Membership no. 0
UDIN: 23082537BG

fr1096
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Date: 12th May,2023
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New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032

Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,

Notes to accounts

1. Pursuant to decision of its board of directors taken in the year 2016, the Company has discontinued "Spice" Brand mobile handset business.
Being a discontinued operation, this business is no longer presented in the segment note. Accordingly, assets and liabilities of the business have
been classified separately as assets / liabilities related to discontinued business.

The details of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 classified separately as assets / liabilities related to discontinued

business are given below:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Rs.(000's) Rs.(000's)
Assets
Financial Assets . ’
(i} Non Current Investments - -
(ii) Loans and advances . 5
(iii) Other Financial Assets 345 44
Other non-current Assets 15 15
360 59
Current assets
Inventories - -
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 1,286 1,286
(ii)Cash and Cash equivalents 345 339
(iii) Other Bank Balances 1,191 1,171
(iv) Loans and advances 290 290
(v) others Financial Assets 371 349
Current Tax assets 3,253 3,276
Other current assets 29,223 31,949
35,959 38,660
Assets directly associated with assets pertaining to 36,319.39 38,719
discontinued business
Non-current liabilities
(i) Borrowings : 8,73,434 8,22,936
(i) Other financial Liabilities 9,109 16,410
Long Term Provisions 5 =
8,82,543 8,39,346
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 90,643 90,643
(ii) Trade payables 3,50,420 3,62,979
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 6,627 6,656
Other Current Liabilities 29,502 11,482
Short Term Provisions - -
4,77,191 4,71,760
Liability directly associated with assets pertaining to
discontinued business 13,59,734 13,11,106
Net assets/ (liabilities) directly associated with -13,23,415 -12,72,387

discontnued business*

v\



2 The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of discontinued operations, of the Company which has been

discontinued.

Particulars

For the Year ended March.
31,2023
(Rs.'

For the Year ended March.
31, 2022
(Rs, '000)

Income

Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total revenue (I)

Expenses

Purchase of traded goods -

Decrease in inventories of traded goods
Employee benefit expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses (II)

Profit (loss) before exceptional items and tax from
continuing operations (I) — (II)

Exceptional items

(Loss) before tax

Tax expenses

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) MAT credit entitlement/utilised

(4)Tax adjustment related to an earlier year

(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

332

4,536

332

4,536

1
50,498

861

2
(29,774)

1,264

51,360

(28,508)

(51,027)

33,043

(51,027)

33,043

(51,027)

Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising

(51,027)

Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the

period)

33,043

2 (a) The following statehent shows the net cash flow of discontinued operations, of the Company which has been

discontinued.

Particulars

Mar'31, 2023
Amount
Rs. '000

Mar'31, 2022
Amount
Rs. '000

Operating
Investing

Financing

Net cash (outflow)/inflow
Earning Per Share;
Earnings per equity share from discontinued business

27
(20)

1,511

(1,579)

(0.51)

(69)
033



New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032
Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,

Notes to accounts

1. Corporate information

The financial statements comprise financial statements of New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited ("the Company™) for the year ended March 31,
2023. The Company Is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company
was engaged In the business of trading of Spice branded mobile handsets through distribution network ("devices business”) and multi-brand
mobile handsets and related accessories through a chain of retail outlets across India (“retail business").* Persuant to board of directar decisions in
year 2016 the company had entered into slump sale agreement with HOTSPOT SALES & SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED to sell jts assets and
liabilities of retall business on going concern basis,

The registered office of the Company has been shifted from state of Himachal Pradesh to National capital Territory of Delhi w.e.f. 02.03.2022 at B-
6/101. 1st.Floor, Near Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, The Company has
prepared these financial statements to camply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act™.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following financial assets and liabllities which have been
measured at fair value:-

Derivative financial nstruments;
Certain finandal assets and liabilities measured at falr value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

During the year, Company continued to hold assets pertaining to discontinued business and has liquidated the assets and liabilities pertaining to
the discontinued business.

The financial statements are presented in Rs. and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (Rs. 000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting palicies

. A, Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it
is:

- BExpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- -Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All cther assets are dassified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= It is expected to be setted in normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reparting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settiament of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for precessing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company

has identified twelve months as its operating cvcle.

B. Foreian currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs(000) which is also Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences, that arised on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost In a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
The gain or loss arising on transfation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or lass are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




Derivative financial instruments

The Company used derivative financial instruments, such as forward cturrency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at falr value at the end of each reporting perlod. Derivatives were carried as financial assets when the fair value |s positive and as
financial liabllities when the fair value is negative

Any gains or losses that arised from changes In the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,

C. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial nstruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
olace elther:

= In the principal market for the asset or fiability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best intersst.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling It to ancther market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure falr \r'alue,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement |s directly or indirectly

observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is uncbservable

For assets and fiabilities that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basls, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input “that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whaole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policles and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments
and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant éssets. such as properties and unquoted financial assets. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Company decides, after discussions with the Company's
external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and labilities which are required to be remeasured or re-

assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of falr value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained abave.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are qiven in the relevant nates.

D .Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal group) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. The criterla for held for sale is regarded met only when the assets are available for immediate sale inits
present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highty probable; and it will genuinely be
sold. not abandoned |

Mon-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under Insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement,

An Impalrment loss Is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset {or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell, A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group)
is recoanised at the date of de-recoanition. d

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised,

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

# -represents a separate major line of business or qeographical area of cperations,

» -is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate mafor line of business or geoaraphical area of operations.

Nen-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately fram the other
assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance
sheat, g

Discontinued operation are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as profit or Ioss before / after tax from

discontinued operation in the statement of profit and loss.




E. Revenue recognition

Revenue was recognised Lo the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be refiably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it Is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/GST is not recelved by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the
commadity by the seller on behalf of the government, Accordinaly, it Is excluded from revenue.
The specific recoqnition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recoanised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods was recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, net of
returns and allowances. trade discounts and volume rebates, :

Rendering of services
Revenue from services rendered towards VAS and airtime commission was recognised as and when the services are rendered.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at Fair value through other comprehensive income, Interest Income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR |s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit [osses. Interest income Is included in other income In the statement of
profit and loss.

F. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from or paid to the taxation autharities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India, where the
Company operates and generates taxabla income.

Current income tax relating to Items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss (either in- other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in comrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly In equity.
Management perlodically evaluates pesitions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax |iabifities are recugni'sed for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recoanised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets |5 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecogrised deferred tax assets are re-

assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
, asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the year when the asset is realised or the liability Is

settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly In equity. i
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.

G.  Sales/ value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax Included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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H.  Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Compahy has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1
April 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Reoair and maintenance costs are recoanised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company used to calculate depreciation on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lifes of the assets as follows:
- Leasehold Improvement : 2 to 9 years, or useful life, whichever Is lower (device business)

- Leasehold Improvement : 3 years or unexpired lease, whichever Is earfier (retail business)

- Plant and equipment : 15 years

- Furniture and Fittinas* : 8 to 10 years

=+ Office Equipment (excluding mohile handsets) : 5 vears

- Mobile Handsets* ; 2 years

2 Computers (excluding server) : 3 years

- Servers : 6 years 5

*The Company, based on assessment made, used to depreciate certain items of furniture and fittings; and mobe handsets over estimated useful
lives which were different from the useful life orescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act. 2013,

Since the Company has discontinued its operations during the previous year, property, plant and equipment have been fully depreciated in the
boaks.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upen disposal or when na future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the assat is derecognised.

The residual values, useful. lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, If appropriate, 5

I.  Intangible assets
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2015
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrvina value as the deemed cost of the intanaible assets.

. Intangible assets (software) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are
carrled at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Based on management assessment cost of software was being amortized over their estimated useful life of 6 years on straight line basis; and cost
of other tangible assets are amartized over their estimated useful life of 3 years on stralght line basis.

Since the Company has discontinued its operations during the year, the property, plant and equipment have been fully depreciated in the books

The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting perlod. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period Is changed
accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with Tnd AS-8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognised.

1. Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are measured initially at costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are stated at cost lass Impairment loss, if
any.

Investment In subsidiaries are derecognised when they are sold or transferred. The difference between the net proceeds on sales and the carrying
amount of the asset is recoanised in the statement of Profit and loss in the period of derecoanition.

K. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs, .

L. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease.
The arrangement Is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts
and circumstances existing on the date of transition,

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that retains substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to awnership to the Company is classified as a finance lease,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost

InFreacec
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M. Inventories
Inventories cemprise of trading goods which are valued alt the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

N.  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impalrment testing for an asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those fram other assets or group of assets,

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset s considered Impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessmants of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset, Tn determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken Into account. If no such transactions can he Identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including Impairment on inventaries, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

0. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It is probable that an
cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money |s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time s recognised as a
finance cost.

P. Warranty

The Company was pmviding-] warranty on spice brand handsets. Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold.
Initial recoanition |s based on historical experience, The Initial estimate of warrantv-related costs is revised annuallv.

Q. Retirement and other employee benefits

a.Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund, The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance shect date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme Is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received befare the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b. The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund, The
liability as at the year-end represents the difference belween the actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability of continuing employees and the falr
value of the plan assets with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) as at the end of the year, During the year 2017, Company has fully
used funds for gratuity plan. The cost of praviding benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method,

c. Accumulated leave, which s expected to be utilized within the next 12 menths, is treated as short-term employee benefit, The Compary
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has

accumulated at the reporting date,
The present value of the defined benefit obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields

at the end of the reporting period on gavernment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long term employee benefit for measurement
purpose & such long term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarlal valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
year-end. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the- balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer

its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date, Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settiement
for a period beyond 12 months, the same Is presented as non current liability.

Remeasurements, cémpris]ng oF actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net

defined benefit fiability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liability), are,

recognised immediately In the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through CCI In the period in which they
occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the follawing changes
" In the net defined benefit obliaation as an expense in the statement of orofit and loss:
- Service costs comprising current service casts, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non- routine settlements; and

- Netinterest expense or income
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R. Financial instruments

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets

Initial rec itfon and ement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by requlation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i, the

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four cateqories:
1) Debt instruments at amortised cost

2) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT

3) Debt instruments and eauity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

4) Equity instruments measured at falr value throuah other comprehensive income (RVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the fallowina conditions are met;

a} - The asset Is held within a business model whose obiective is to held assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding. -

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation s included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss, The lpsses
arising from Impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other recelvables,

Equity investments
Al equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classifisd as at FVTPL,

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finandial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (l.e.
removed from the Company's bafanoe sheet) when:
- The rights to receive cash flaws from the asset have expired, or

- -The Company has transferred substantially 3l the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent It has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assel, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

* The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables and all other financial with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal
ta 12-month ECL, unless there has been a slanificant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured for specific
assets. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is
required to be recognised is recognized as an impalrment galin or loss in statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabllities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrawings, payables as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. .
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowinas and financial auarantee contracts.

ik
Sul ement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabifities at fafr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Finandial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabllities held for trading are recoanisad in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at’

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amertisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortisation Is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.




Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lizbility, The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet if there Is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on 2 net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

S. Convertible debentures

Conwvertible debentures are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract, On issuance of the convertible
debentures, the fair value of the liability component Is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument, This amount
Is classified as a financial liability measured at amartised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds Is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32
criteria for fixed to fixed classification. The carrying amount of the canversion option Is not remeasured in subsequent years.

T.  Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three

months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined abeove as they are
considered an intearal part of the Company’s cash management,

* 2.3 Recent Accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not vet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the date of i @ of the C 's financial

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has not notified new standared which would have been applicable from 1st. April, 2022, However on 23rd.
March, 2022, MCA amended the companies (Indian Accounting standard) Amendment Rules, 2022 applicable from 1st. April,2022. The effect of
those amendments is not material to the company.




4, Share Capital

Particulars As at Asat
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Authorized )
100,000,000 (March 31, 2022: 100,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,00,000 10,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
99,717,400 (March 31, 2022 99,717,400) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,97,174 9,97,174

997,174 9,97,174
(a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Nos, Rs. '000

Outstanding at the end of the year as at March 31, 2022 9,97,17,400 9,97,174
Outstanding at the end of the year as at March 31, 2023 9,97,17,400 9,97,174

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Compahy has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share,

and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares

In the event of quuidallon'of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders, .

(c) Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Holding Company
Hindustan Retail Private Limited, the holding company
99,717,400 (March 31, 2022: 99,717,400) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 9,97,174 9,97,174
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
- AT —ATAT
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

%o holaing in Y% holding in the
Name of the shareholder Nos. the class Nos. class
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Hindustan Retail Private Limited, the holding company 9,97,17,400 100% 100%

9,97,17,400

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders and
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

other declarations received from sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding

(e) No shares have been allotted without: payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,




New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited

Notes to financials statements as at Mar 31, 2023

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of m:mqm:oa_:mb* promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters % Change during the year
Promoter name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
) No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares  [% of total shares
Hindustan Retail Private Limited 9,97,17,400 100% 99717400 100% 0.00%
99717400 100% 99717400 100% 0
Shares held by promoters
Promoter name As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares  |% of total shares | % Change during the year
Hindustan Retail Private Limited 99717400 100% 99717400 100% : 0.00%

99717400 100% . 99717400 100% 0.00%




5. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on

conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares inte Equity shares,

The following reflects the profit/(loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Discountinued Operation (51,027) 33,043

Net profit/(Loss) for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (51,027) 33,043

Continuing Operation

Profit/(loss) after tax ) (51,027) 33,043

Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (51,027) 33,043

. Nos. : Nos.,
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 9,97,17,400 9,97,17,400

Convertible debenture %

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating 9,97,17,400 9,97,17,400
diluted EPS .

*Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are not considered for EPS considering anti dilutive impact.

Basic and diluted earning per éhare of Rs 10 each (in Rs.) {0.51) 0.33
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6. Gratuity (defined benefit plan)

a) Defined Contribution Plan

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
(Rs._'000) [Rs, '000)
Gratuity plan 120 120
Total 12_0_ 120

The Curnpang has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or
more of s_erwcelgets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The scheme |s
funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the

time of departure.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the

balance sheet for the plans:
Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense (recognised in personnel expenses) for Gratuity

As at
31 Mar 2023
(Rs. '000)

Gratuity
As at
31 Mar 2022
{Rs. '000)

Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation

Net benefit expense

Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined beneflt obligation are as follows:

As at
31 Mar 2023
(Rs. '000)

Gratuity
As at
31 Mar 2022
{Rs. '000)

Opening.defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expenses Recognised in Profit and loss statement*

Benefits paid**

Liability transferred to HSSPL / SOPL

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change In Demographic Assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Financial Assumption
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustment

Total change in defined benefit obligation due to change in acturial losses/(gains) recognised in OCI1
Closing defined benefit obligation

120 130

*Due to discontinuance of operation by the company, the management has decided to provide for the Iiabﬁq’ly on actual basis instead of providing liability based on acturial

valuation,

**Amount has been paid directly by the Company and trust.
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Gratuity
As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
{Rs. '000) (Rs. '000)

Cpening fair value of plan assets 23 23
Expected return " - &
Transfer from another company - -
Benefit Pald = -
Fund Management Charge = &
Actuarial gain/(loss) for the year on Asset -

23 23

Closing fair value of plan assels

-
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7. C i and i

A, Commitments

Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining to be executed on capltal account and not provided for Rs.Nil (March 2022 : Rs Nil).

B. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the C. not ack dged as debts
Legal claim contingency

Mar-23 Mar-22
Rs.(000's) Rs.(000's)
Claims agalinst the Company not acknowledged as debls
Consumer Disputes® t i 608 a5
Demands ralsed by sales tax authoritles* ¥+ 4,45,078 4,372,631
4,45,685 438,457

* The cases are pending with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Forums. As per the management, the Company is made coly a proforma party to these claims and liability, if any, arlsing out of these
claims would be on the manufacturer and not likely to deveive on the Company.

**The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 on the Judgment in case of State of Punjab Vs, Nokia India Pvt. Ltd, has held that sales tax liability on battery charger sold
aleng with mobile phone should be charged at sales tax rate applicable to chargers, which is Irigher than the sales tax rate apglicable to mobile phones in few states. Demand of Rs 11035 theusand, Rs
54665 thousand, Rs 27597 thousand, Rs 1504 thousand and Rs.719 thousand {31 March 2021: Rs 11025 thousand, Rs 54565 th d, Rs 27597 th d, Rs 1504 th d & Rs.719 ) have been
received from Punjab, Rajasthan, Haryana, Uttar Pradesh and Karnatka respectively.

***The Company has fair chances of success in all these cases and hence no provision in respect thereof has been made in the books,

C. Financial guarantees

The Company has pledged its fixed deposit of Rs, Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil) and Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil}, In respect of the bank guarantee taken by Hotspot Sales & Solutions Pvt Limited and
Celiucom Retail india (P} limited and As. NIl {March 31, 2022: Rs.NIl) with respect to various government authorities.

8. Related party transactions

Following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered Inta with related partles for the gelevant financial year.

Utlimate Holding Company Smart Glebal Corporate Holding Private Limited
Halding Company Hindustan Retail Private Limited
DIGISPICE Technologies Ltd.{ Holding Company of Hindustan Retail Private Limited b
Spice Connect Private Limited (Holding Company of DigiSpice Technologles Limited )
Subsidiaries * Y Cellucom Retail India Private Limited till 15th May, 2022
Fellow subsidiaries Splce Money Limited (Formerly known as Spice Digital Limibed)
Kimaan Expaorts Pve Ltd
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Rahul Kumar-Hon executive Director (appointment w.e.l. 13,03.2020)
Sanjeav Kumar- Non ive Director ( wed. 1512.2020)

Shilpy Gupta-Non executive Director {appaintment w.e.f. 11,05.2021)
Adarsh Goyal-Non executive Director (appointment w.ef. 31,12,2020 and resigned 1 1.05.2021)
Mukesh Anand, CEO (resigned w.e.F,12.02.2023)
Surendra Kumar Verma, CFO

& Parisha Gupta - Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 31.12.2020 and resigned w.e.f, 31.05.21)
Nidhi Goel - Cempany Secretary (resigned w.e.f. 31.01.2023)
Chaitali Chintan Dessl-Company Secretary (appointment w.e.£.01.05,2023)

The details of the related parties transactions is duly mentioned In Annexure A, forming part of the balance sheat.

9. Segment information
Primary segments: Business Seqments

The C was engaged mainly In telec atlons- Moblle b which rep the b af trading of mabile b  The Ci y has discant: this b during FY 2017-18 and
transferred business assets & liabilities existing as at March 31, 2018 relating to this business to assets/liabilities related to discontinued business.

Secondary S 3 graphical

As the Company's business activity falls within a single al seg , there Is no | disclasures required to be provded for geographical segments.

10. Hedging activies

| 4 daing i
ash instr

Der notd y
The Company used foreign exchange forward contract to manage some of Its transaction expasure, The foreign exchange forward cantract are nat designated as cash flow hedges and are entered Into for
period consistent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transaction, generally from three months to six months.

11, Fdir values

Set out balow, is a :omparlsén_ by class of the carrying amaunts and fair value of the Company’s financial Instruments, other than those with carrying that zre ble app of fair
values;
{Amount in Rs, '000})
Carrying Value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Financial assets
Other financial assets ;
Sgcurity Deposits 24 24 . =
Total " 24 24 ¥ -
Financial liabilities
Security Deposit 9,109 16,410 9,109 16,410
e Izarily C© (o] 7,88,164 7.88,164 7.58,164 . 7,88,164
Total 7,97,273 8,04,574 7,97,274 8,04,574




The Manzgement has assessed that the falr value of cash and cash equivalents,
approximate to their canrying amounts largely due ta the short-term maturities

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities s included at the amount at
sale. The following meth and

luated by the C

= Borrowings are ¥ based on p

= The fair value of other financial liabilities, obligations under finance leases, is estimated by discounting fisture cash

maturities,

ather bank balances, trade recelvables,
of these instruments,

other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities

which the Instrument could be a:@angen in & current transaction between willling parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

were used to estimate the fair valyes:

such as interest rates and specific country risk factors,

flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remalning

- The fair values of the Company's borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the lssuer's barrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

12, Fair value hierarchy

{1) Financial lnstrumeuh by Category

{Amount in Rs. ‘000

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Financial Asscts FUTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
-Long Term loans and advances = = . =
-Other Non-Current Financial Assets - 345 - i 44
-Trade receivables = 1,286 = 1,286
-Cash and cash equivalent - 345 - 33g
-Other Bank Balances - 1,191 - 1,171
-Current Inans and advances - 290 - 250
-Other Financial assets - 371 - 349
Total financial assets - 3,828 - 3,479
Non Current Borrowing - B,73,434 - B,22,936
Other Long tarm Liabilities 9,109 - 16,410
Current Borrowing - 90,643 - ; 490,643
Currant Trade payables 3.50,420 - 3,62,579
Other Current Financial Liabilities = 23,502 - 11,482
Total Financial Habilities = 13,53,108 = 13,04,450
(2) Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabili
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities; " Amount in Rs, '000
Fair value measurement usin
————-M=asurementusing
Quated prices In active Significant Significant
Date of valuation Total markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Libilities measured at fair value; 3

Borrowings 31-Mar-23 8,73,434 8,73,434

Borrdwings 31-Mar-22 6,22,936 8,22,935
Securlty Deposits 31-Mar-23 2,109 9,109
Security Deposits 31-Mar-22 16,410 16410

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Leve| 2 during the pariod.

hy for assets:

Q itative discl 25 fair value ement hi

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Significant

5 Significant
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active observable inputs uncbservable inputs
markets (Level 1)
[Leye| 2} {Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
Assets for which fair values are discliosed (Note 27):

Dther financial assets :

Security Deposits
Security Deposits

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the perind.
13, Financial risk management objectives and palicies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities,

31-Mar-23
31-Mar-22

camprise loans and borrowings, trade and ather payables. The
principal financial assets include loans, trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equivalents and ban

24
24

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and lig ¥ risk. The Company’s senior
The senior provides te to the Company's senior that the C
s d and In accardance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives,

summarised below,

advizes on financial risks and th
y's financlal risk activities are gaverne
The Baard of Directors reviews and aan

main purpose of these financal liabllities is to
k balzaces that derive directly from its aperations,

24
24

finance the Company’s operatians. The Company’s

& appropriate financial risk governance framewark for the Company,
4 by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
ees on policies for managing each of these rigks, which are



1)Market risk

Market risk | the risk that the fair value af future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk, such as equily price risk and commedity risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk Include loans and borrowings and deposits. Company is not effectey by commaodity risk.

The i ¥ I in the foll 0 sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
The Itivity Iyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating Interest rates of the debt Instruments are all constant ,
The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post- bl ' P 5
The following assumptions have been made In calculating the sensitivity analyses:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss (tem is the effect of the d changes In respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 20232,

-Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash Nlows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in
market Interest rates relates primarily to the Security deposits received/pald and barrowing, §

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table d the itivity to a re b ible change in Interest rates on that partion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other varizbles held constant, the Company’s profit

before tax Is affected through the impact an fioating rate borrowings, as follows:
{Amaount in Rs. '000)

Increase/(decrease) in basis points Effect on loss before tax
31-Mar-23

INR . ; + 50 {4,858)
INR ’ - 50 4,858
31-Mar-22 %

INR . + 50 (4,801)
INR - 50 4,801

The assumed movement In basis paoints for the Interest rate sensitivity analysis |5 based an the currently abservable market envirenment, shawing a significantly higher valatility than In prior years.

-Foreign currency risk

Fareign currency risk Is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes in forelgn exchange rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn
exchange rates relates primarily to the C ¥'s g activities exp are Incurred In a foreign currency, The Company manages Its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected
to occur within a maximum 12-menth period for hedges of farecasted purchases,

When a derlvative Is entered into for the purpose of heing a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives ta maich the terms of the hedged exposure, For hedges of forecast transactions the
derivatives cover the period of expasure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting payable that Is denominated in the foralgn currency.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The f tables d ate the itivy to a r y change In USD exchange rate, with the other variables held constant,

{Amount in Rs. '000} {Amount In Rs. '000)
Effect on loss before

Ehenge in USD rate tax_ Effect on pre-tax equity

{Increase) fdecrease

31-Mar-23 5%
-5% - %
31-Mar-22 . 5% - -
-5% - =

~Equity price risk
The Company does not have any exposure to equity risk ether than equity of subsidiary company.

2)Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial Instrument or customer contract, leading to 2 finandal less. The Company Is expased to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activitles, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial Instruments.

-Trade receivables
Custemer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to cust credit risk m. « Credit quality of a customer is assessed and limits are

defined In accordance with this assessment. At 31 March 2023, the o pany had net g of Rs 1,286 th d (31 March 2022: Rs, 1,286 Ip 4 to d disciosed
sgperately under Assets related to discontinued business.

An Impairment analysis |5 performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for majer clients,

Fil i and cash d i
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions |s managed in accordance with the Company's policy. Further the Company's policy alse covers the limits of overall deposit which the Company
can make with a particular bank or financial | ion, y does not mai, the significant amount of cash and deposits other than those required for its day lo day operations.

3) Liquldity risk

The Company’s cbjective Is to malintain aptimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements at all limes, The Company relies on a mix of barrowings and excess operating cash flows to
meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to mediumy lang term needs. The Company monitors rolling farecasts of its Hquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient eash ta meet operational needs whife maintaini a sufficient head on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits ar

covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilitias.

"



The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

v it On Demand Less than 3 Months 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Total
Ear en:

31-Mar-23

Borrowings {Mon-Currant) - - - 8,73,434 B,73,434

Barrowings (Current) 90,643 - - - 90,643

Other financial liabilities{nan-current) - - 9,109 5.109

Cther financial |iabilitiesfcurrent) - 29,502 - : - 29,502

Trade and other pavables - 3 50,420 - - 3,50,420

50,

Tatal 90,643 3,79,922 - 8,812,543 13,53,108
. On Demand Less than 3 Months 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Taotal

Year ended

31-Mar-22

Barrowings {Mon-Current) - - B,22,936 822,936

Barrowings {Current) 90,643 - - 90,643

Other financial liabilities{nan-current) - - » 16,410 16,410

Other financial liabilities(currant) L 11,482 - . 11,482

Trade and other pavables = 3,69,575 - . - 3,69,575

69,

Total 90,643 3,81,057 = 8,359,346 13,11,046

E risk ation

(k»m:e_ntratlons arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities |n the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their abllity to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political ar other conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive conc of risk, the Company’s palicies and procedures include specific guidelines o focus on the e of a d fied porticlio. Identified cone of credit
risks are controlled and managed accordingly,

~Collateral

The Company has pledged part of its margin money deposits, amounting ta Rs. 8.06 thousand (March 31, 2022: Rs. 8.06 thousand) in arder to fulfil the collateral requiraments for the subsidiary of
Company. The counterparties have an obligation to return the securities to the Company.There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the use of collateral.

14, Capital management

For the purpose of the G ¥'s capital capital includes issued equity capital, share premlum and all other eqully reserves attributatle tg the equity halders of the parent. The primary
abjective of the Company’s capital Is ta imise the shareholder value, To mai or adjust the capital slructure, the Company may issue new shares,
The Company manages Its capltal structure and makes adjusrmem-s in light of changes In scanomic conditions and the r q is of the financial covenants,

Capital include the following-

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
. Rs. '000 Re. ‘000
Equity 997,174 9,97,174
Convertible Debenture ! 8,73.434 8,22,936

Other equi (23,20,588) (22,69,562)

—er equity —124,£0,588
Total capital (4,49,980) (4,49,452)

In order to achieve this cverall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst ather things, aims to ensure that it meets financial ovenants attached tg the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to Imnmediately call loans and barrowings. There have been na breaches In the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current perind.

Mo changes were made In the objectives, policles or processes for managing caplital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

15, Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remalning unpald to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
-Interest due on above

NIL NIL
The amount of Interest pald by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier NIL MNIL
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyoand the appointed day during the year) NIL NIL
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year NIL NIL
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above ara actually pald NIL NIL
to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible ex; nd under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 NIL NIL

16. Disclosure required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Included In loans and advances, the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sectlon 186(4) of Companles Act, 2013

Details of Investments made (At cost):
Particulars As on As on
{ March 31,2033 |
M Rs, 000

50,000,000 (Previous year 50,000,000} Unquoted fully pald up equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,82,439 4,82,439
in Cellucom Retall India Private Limited




17. Significant accounting judg ts, estii and ptions

The preparation of the Company's financial stat Ents requires gement to make jud « estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and _the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent llabilities. Uncertainty about these assimptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected |n future periods

Esti and ions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change dus to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the contral of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. :

The Company has carried forward tax losses, These losses expire in 8 years and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Comgany. The Company neither
have any taxable temporary difference nor any lax planning oppartunities available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets, On this
basis, the Company has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarlal valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These Include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated In India, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds In currencies consistent with the currencles of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality Lables tend to change only at interval in response to demaographic
changes. Future salary Increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 6.

1B. Ration Analysis:- as per Annexure B

19. In the opinion of the board, the current assets, loan & advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, atleast equal to the aggregate amount as
shown in the balance sheet.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of
directors of New Spice Sales and
Solutiong Limited

PP gmpa qu,ﬁ@\
S D CHOPRA & ASSOCIATES Sanjeev Kumar Shilpy Gupta

Chartered Accountants Director Director
Firm Registration No. DIN: 08982253 DIN: 07234866

S.D. Chopra
Proprietor 4
Membership No. 08

UDIN: 230825378

%‘PCHTEGH Desai S - ar-Verma

Company Secretary Ctiief Financlal Officer

Place: Noida
Date: 12th May,2023



New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLCISS0R2
Regd, Address: B-6/101, 1st Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowi, Laxm] Nagar, Delhl-110092, ANNEXURE A

Ss.lruain_!nﬂ;lin&u_iisurg

{Amount in Rs.(000's))
Particulars Halding Company /Ultimate Subsidiary Fallow Subsidiary ey ey Taotal
Holding Company management personnel
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-12 2022-23 2031-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-23 2023-23 2021-22
A} _Transactions
{ | Lean Taken
DIGISPICE Technologles Lid, (Formerty Spos Mobdity Limited)
|| Expenses paid by the holding company
DIGISFICE Technalogies Lid. (Formeny Spice Mobiity Limited) 1,551 338 - . 1,651 348
Ceiiyenm Fetail Inda (P} Uimiveg 135 211 135 214
|| Interest expenses
|| DIGISPICE Technologies [t (Formery Spice Momiiity Limit=d)
|| Legal & Professional Expenses
Spice Connect Private Limived
|| Dirmetor sitting fos paid
Seema Sabwan
| | Trade Payables
DIGISPICE T Lt {Feernerly Spice Mobility Limited) 379,598 3,77,797 3,785,448 3,77,757
Loans Payable
DIGISPICE Technoiogies L. {Formerty Spice Mobility Limited) 50,636 50,626 50,538 50,636
Hindustan Remail Private Limised 1,498 - 41448 X 1948 41,448
Trade Receivables
Lellucom Retail Indin (P} Lirnited - - 4,725 4,550 4,735 4590
Interest accrued but not paid
DIGISPICE Technologies Lirl. (Farmerty Space Mobilty Umited) z 4,205 4,205 . 4,205 4,205
‘Other Receivable
Hindustan Retail Private Limited 2,958 2,558 2,958 2958
Debentures
Hincustan Retall Privae Limited 9,13,500 5,13,500 9,13,500 513,550
| {B)| Dutstanding at the end of the year
Accrued Interest on Loans
CIGISFILE Technoiogies Led. (Formeny Spice Mobity Limied)
Interest accrued but not paid S -
DISTSPICE ._.R_.EU Lea {Farmerty Spice Mobilty Limited) 4,205 4,205 4,205 4,005
Trade Payables
DIGISPICE Tethnologies Ltdl {Fomerly Sice Mabilty Limited) 3,759,448 3,77,797 3,795,448 3,77,797
| | Loans Payable
CIGISFICE Lid, (Formerly Spéce Mobility Limited) 50,635 50,635 50,638 50,638
Hingustan Resail Private Limited 41,448 41,4948 |. . 41443 41,498
Trade Receivables
Cellucom Retail Ingia (P) Limited . 4,725 4,560 4,735 a,550
Hingustan Retal Private Limited * 2,958 2,958 2,058 2958
Debantures.
Hinduzzan Aezail Private Lirmited - 9,13,500 9,13,500 9,13,500 9,13,500
| I
Notes:

rEéiggﬁ&mggﬁﬁﬂﬁaxﬁaaaﬂég!gnﬁgﬂhgusgﬂigﬂganﬂﬂkg
u.i%«igaﬁngwinﬁg




New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
Notes to financials statements as at Mar 31, 2023

18. Financial Ratios

The major financial ratios of the Company are disclosed below along with the reasons for va nance:

Annexure B

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Ratia Formula Numerator | Denominator Ratio Numerator | Denominator Ratio % of ¥ardance | Reason for Variance
Current Ratio Current Assets / Current Lizbilities 32417 477,191 0.07 35,225 47,760 007 -9%%) Increase due to increasa in
current assels
Debt equity ratio Tatal Debt ! Sharcholder's Equity - . = = - < - |NA
Debr -service coverage ratio Eamings available for debi service / NA
Dbt Senice
Retum on equity ratio Net Profits afler taxes — Preference (51,027 (12,97,900) 4% 313,043 (12,883,909 (0.03) -233%|decrease due to profit in
Dividend (if any) / Avg current year as compared
Shareholder's Equity 1o loss in last year
Inventory fumaver ratio Cost of goods sold or sales / - - - B - - |NA
Ave Inventory
Retum on Capital employed Eaming befors interest and taxes / (31,027  (13,23414) 0.04 33,043 {12,72,387) {0.03) -248% | decrease due to profitin
Capital Employed current year as compared
to loss in last year
Return on investments (Caleulated | (MV(T1) - MV(T0) - Sum [C(0)]} - - - - - - - |NA
for Equity} 4 MV(TO) + Sum [W(H) * Cti))
Trade receivable tumover rato Nel Credit Sales / Ave, Accounts - - - - - - - [NA
i Receivable
Trade payable umover ratio Net Credit Purchases / Ave. Trade - - - - NA
Payables
Net capital tumover ratio Met Sales / Working Capital - - - - - - - |NA
N.P. Ratio Net Profit { Net Sales - - - - - NA
Debt -service coverage ratio
Earming for Debt Service = Net Profit afler taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like d T and other + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assels etc.

Debt service = Interest & Lease Pavments + Prncipal Repayments
“Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (lass) for the period” and it does not includz items of oiher comprehensive income

ny aver ratio

Average inventary (Opening + Closing balance / 2) i
When the information opening and closing balances of inventory is not available then the ratio can be calculated by dividing COGS OR Sales by closing balance of Inventory.

1 i d

Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

Tirade receivable turnaver ratio

Net credit sales consist of gross credit sales minus sales return,
Trade receivables includes sundry debiors and bills receivables,
Average trade deblors = (Opening + Closing balance / 2)

I'rade payable tmmaover ratio

Net eredit purchases consist of gross credit purchases minus purchase retum

Dvet capital turnover ratio

Net sales shall be calculated as total sales minus sales retums.
Working capital shall be calculated s current assets minus current liabilities

N.P. Ratio
Met profit shall be after tax.

Net sales shall be caleulated as total sales minus sales retums.




Part "A" : Subsidiaries

New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited
CIN: U32201DL1988PLC399032
Regd. Address: B-6/101, 1st. Floor, New Jain Mandir, Subhash Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092,
Form AOC-1
Stat t ining salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

{Amount in Lakhx)

\or

4

=,

SL.No. | Name of Subsidiary Company Reporting period for | Date when Reporting Currency | Exchange Rate | Share Capital Reserves & Total Assers Total Investments ( excluding Turnover | Profit!{Loss) Provision Profit/(Loss) | Proposed e of
the subsidiary* subsidiary was on the last date Surplus ’ Liabilities investment made in Total Income Before Tax |  For Tax After Tax Dividend |sharcholding #
acquired of the FY (io be subsidiaries)
given ouly in case]
of forcign
subsidiaries)

_H * Cellucom Reail India Private Limited _f_.“n.ww&wuoﬁ 16|06 February 2009 INR 100 5,000 010 (5.053.14) 1642 1642 : . (6.46) . (6.:56) 100.00%
MNotes

I Name of subsidiarics which are vet 1o = Nou

2 Name of subsidiarics which has been liguidated or sold during the year - Not Applicabic

Piart "B"™: Associates ies and Joint Venty Not

Place: Noidy
Date: May 12, 2023

For and on behalf of the bourd of directors of New Spice Sales and Solutions Limited

el

Director
DIN: 07234866

|~
Suren ‘erma
i ancizl Officer
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3\ acerTs.,




